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Harry Woll o #i-

Interviewed by Luciile Brown

H ‘U""‘%’* Lot o€l

. Mr, Woll, would you tell rmme when you were born,
A, September 28, 1898,
O, Yhere?
Gromel
AL CGieritmer, Russta
€3, You were in white Russia, then?
A, Yeah, at that time it was Russiaﬂge suburb was known as white

: O1E.
Russia but it was Crumsser, Russia,
v, Ll o

{3, It was different because the different parts, at one tirme it was also

P oland, wasn't it.

st Prlond.

A, Mo, we were on the border of Puland,h shn the border.

1. Liet's look at the map.

A, It has to be scientific more or less, therefore, you have to be careful.
Q. That's right. It's better now than after it is in print, I'd rather

|
find oui now than later but even 3o Lirather I hadn't made that mistake if [

air incorrect.

A, Bacha{.?)} was rvuch closer to_this town was much closer to Pbland

“

than we were,

Gomel

N Your town wag Camuwel, I've geen it on a map and that section was

called white Russia 7

A, That was called white Rusaia,

1. And it was always Ruesian?

A, Always Russian., Always Russian,

{3 d it never go back and forth hetween the two,

. hm;-e, {
A, It could be at the time of Ronﬁsﬁ;?kThat could be that but they over
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ran and took it over but I wouldn't consider that, they never did when I studied

at the high school,the gymnasia and then in the college, they never considerea

!

this part of Poland that it belongs to Poland., It wa;s white Russia. However,

there were times when they controlled and then you are absolutely right.
A

oK.
2. That's all [ said that it shifted back and forth,
Chmeeln 2Ky, HKrenuna)
A, They controlled. Minitsehy if{at was it and the Eureranians that was

the time when they were,
Wi/, and Thorn 5 -
Q. Again after the first World War, right, éo I'n~ not incorrect., You
gave me a pcare there for a minute, Mr., Woll,
W il
A, We grew ‘sf’fthe 1ir.‘lceau that white Russia had nothing to do with Poland

because Poland was far away. It wasn't so close,gut through the history of

these European counfries they have been capturing one the other then

.

, tee
separating again so it's hard to tell. That was zll under béini . Asa

matter of fact, we Jews have a good reason to remember that time because
during the fight between the Poles and the Ukranians in the Jewish year of
408 now it is 737 but that was 408;\1@9 know it in Hebrew the expression
Zana tauch and tauch{ ?) the wa-!rlshhappened)the misfortunes of these two years,
408 and 409)because the Poles masacred many Jews at that time, They over
ran that's what they caused-but never controlled it. That's it.
Gome|

£, S0, you were born in Gerrreel and what was the nearest, you said
ﬂ’fmﬁK Mln‘aé .
Minseh was the nearest big city. b was the neavest big city, right?

Oy one Minsk , )
A, Thai was the nearest big city alongside Minseh and the other BldeJ

A4 '

about the same distance F}—i{e‘r 4 “//_(V&W)@_
Q. Is that right?

A, Yeah, About the same distance.
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A, S0 that would be between north and south almost. Kiev was south

hnsk
of vou and éﬁmaeh was north of you, That puts you right in the rniddle of

Pripet ?
the o-r{geke-dma,rshes. Right.

Polest

A, That was known as Peleehy and we were on the border of that. We
lived there,

Gromel o shtefel.
., Now was Gomuesel w siaple,

Ve, Govel
&, Geomel wasg by comparison a central city, We had no colleges but
w e had four high echools and we had a populaiion close to 290, 000 at the first

World War. Later it changed a great deal. As a matter of fact the

communists changed it instead of you know that the Russian districts are

quberny, Minsk, guberngl | flogile vska,
named by ubsrmey, We were ministrative veeney., We belonged io Minselky
M(ng ey, tinsk %-gdéernjm'

you see,, That'n-eans Limc—‘-l—li.-uba-tﬁe‘y was bordering on Poland and that

ﬂ'/ogrlev’

was the influence of Poland there, : is cloger to central Russia

8o the Polish had no influence although in each and every town,you had a

big synogogue built by either a prince of the &kealm or the government and
slavc

a Russian church)a-};ﬁvirc and a Catholic because you had Poles living there

too. It waa close but still didn't belong to Poland.

Q. So you had about 200, 000 population?
A, About 200, 800 variable 160, 000 to 200, D00 population.
Q. Was there in&uatry in the town,uow I am talking about before the first

World War?

A, Yeah, yeah, there was no industry there.
Q. What did most of the .paople do? How did they make a living?
A. I'li tell you., The Jewish people most of them were connected with

Cu fh
tra:pp’l'%‘g wood in the forest, lumber that was their business and some of
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dppict 2
them were cl%ed ehev—wa:rahoemakers, they never had an induatry

G—owje [
there but since fogart is on the River Sourch that's the name of the river

which cowmes in asg I rrentioned before Kiev was not far so 2 number of Jews

. >
Fee ghT
vecupied themselves with having Sag ship boats heading south from Poland
HWKraine.

all the way to Euwlet?) that was their business.
2. I naver heard that before Jews being engaged in water freight. Now

Yeere wew Lome Ten- ,
w e heard it, AAt the time you are speaking of Russia controlied this porticn
A, That's right. I was born in white Russia,belonging to Russia.
Q. Now for example)these water freight people, the Jews who were

engaged in water carrying freight by water, did they have to have a special
license from the Russian government?
A, Yes, they had to pay a certain fee for the right of doing this,
&. And they were Mto doing that?
A, Yeah, they were /Q;&W-p@,
3. hat was one of the avenues opened tc¢ them.?
Grom el
A. That's right you see there was onse big factory in Gurnmel that

belonged to the government to the railroad., They were fixing x{whatever

cars and trains that they had to, No Jews would come in there,ﬁey wouldn't

o
accept Jews there.
%%Wﬁé Py 2
Q. at was government owned?
A, That's government owned. As a matier of fact this was the first and

the only group in that neighborhood that was a working element and had
consideration for certain ideals of justice and fair play.

Q. From this factory?

A, From this factory, railroad factory.

‘LM i

2, Are you saying that it was organized at all, was there some,
A
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A, The factory was conducted by the government but we had in 1905

the first pPHUW i Wﬂ/ That was the first and then there was a second
T

one, During the second one...

Q. When was the second one?

A, If I''! not mistaken it was right after the firgt World War and groups

il awlltelf
of partisans occupied this town and ready to destroy a lot of us, so this and

lpded o fwb.‘, " i

they put fireﬁand it was a fire all over. These workers came enmasstand

chased away. this so that was the interesting thing., Labor had some chance

Aty - Semites, y 4
although they were aa-me—h-aa-iﬂq,la certain sense of fairness, fair play more

or less and another group were the peasants from the villages, they came,

Juke.

There,it was a divided group. Some of them came to tvh to pay—for

whatever they could., Others came to help out, As a matter of fact they came
L g .

with forks with axel they had no amunition and they came in to save the city.

but to save the city, But this is something that as a child,

mou’-ﬁd
I was very much impressed and that maaaati most of us young people, terned

W coutd éd’.d?m oo

socialigm and labor aws=a They came and they chased away

{Not to save the Jewa;

the bandits.

Q. Now where were the bandiis from?

A, They were usually deserters from the army, #ad then it wéaj you know
‘ Botoborile,  Satobone

the war ended with the socialist revolution. Not the Eelshi Fhe sl took

over about three years later. |

Q. No, no we are talking aBout 1905 now. You are talking about the

second pogrom( 7). Oh, okay. I'mJ a little mimed up.

Al The first progrom it was merely anti-agmitic'you s_tée‘ one has to

know way of life for the peasants. The peasants were very. poo';"-.__ because
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originally they would get so much land and then with the increase in the

W by o woae ST Vial
family the same parcel of land was divided among them.and-then after

three generations’ they didn't have enough landﬁnd they were starving,lﬁ;ey

were dostdy poor,d i -
were poor,&nd the government} the s& t government supplied

. wéme e YRTIP 4
them with a lot of whiskey. They had these places sold

a prLe.s
the x;uh.isltr.ej.r"ﬂ They supplied them so most of the time, they were drunk and

they didn't have anything, they were almost naked.so it was easy for them to

fall prey to any kind of education)any kind of talk and because of poverty

need Rob! Take!
things and

and because ne-a#-‘z)they would go out and hear! o ,Emen there

_ Faye not
was something else, the people having inherited long before} !

but” A ChAmeinitzKuf . ..
with the government the people bﬁg inherited from the tirne of "F—Eeai-tﬂ-laf(—'l)g

you see the Poles controlled at that time part of Russia)so what they did they

rented out to Jewa the control of the church, the control of everything and

the pe:»as'amtsn}I the Russian peasantsjﬁm child diedﬂ% had to hay because who

collected the money, the Jew, The fact that the Jew had to pay almost as
( 77

much to the Pole/'thab didn't they didn't know,s0 they developed a certain

hatred towards the Jew. Then the Jew! as you said before, there was no
induatr'y-there. There were merchants, store keepers and small business -
m_e‘n.so the gentile, the peasantibot & city véiie‘r, & peaaantJthey would say

he walks around with hie hands clean and makes me work and he gets the

benefit;g'o_- that developecjlh it was easy, especially when the government ceulbd

b&kﬁit, The government wasmmis mJand it was done on

purpdféé_;sb the peasant wouldn't have time to think about his own éﬁzgo
you had:;'_]ail: kinds of peopie who couldn't find themselves and they would join

L . priem . S
these groups and that was the ,And in many places it was 2 masacre
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MQ,. - 2
rather tha t not only ruined business but westly killed people.

2. But where the people in the factory came out and when the villages

came out that was already about 19...

| N ,

A, That was 1905, That was !-he.Afirst and the second Both,

A
Q. Both times they came out?
A, Both times they came, yeah.

¥
Q. Please again would you repeat the date of the second 9 80
I could ¢+
/917

A, If 1 am not mistaken it was in #31%. It was right after the war.
Q. Was it before the Revolution or?

G “f vl
A, That was when the Revolution started. The Revolution gave a push

b
to these people and formed all kinds of groups fighting the Bulshexichs and

groups that supported them and they were fighting aﬁd’ﬁxe Jew was the one ,é
- nerthein S0 et 24
who was neighie? in the labor ranks, he was a small businessman and that

_ oineo, Vi .@vap¢ﬂb¢nvnﬁa¢nm;%$7u%amd?
was the anti-semitism, He had/\ t wanted to ge‘t back just asg
ol

you had in here when you had these negros, the same thing to get whatever...

ikl atao /?HIW

and that was the thing. But of course they were-also guilty. /' See I:he second.

one wag 8o pronounced that the we never knew who was in cci-ntrol of he

orm. o o
kawef®F of the city., They changed hands every day;—iome group‘would\tionq_uer
c

and kill a number of people and take over and then a.nother gz,roup woulcﬁ come ¢

&at’a&ﬂ&/
there were all kinds with the idea that they were fighting the Bu}.ahmzi.cha

and that was it, 0 we suffered and went through all this and d:on_"t-;l forget-q}\at
when the él.l.l.s.h'nrhs took over the countrg{, the country didn' t prfoduce-the ' :

stores were almost empty, forf%hrs—ﬁm—atores-wene_almost—empw H‘ncl in orﬂ‘&‘
to buy bread, the peasant needed s-el-n*(-‘?‘-) He haa breadqﬁe lived n the villages
. |‘I !

| "
ah
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but he couldn't get sa_lt,go we all used to take with us bags of salg go about

30, 40, 50 r_niles to villages, exchange it for flour and bring it homne and

."“‘Xhé.ve bread,

Q. Now where did you get the salt-ffom ?

A.-__ " In the cities, we still had salt, We had salt in the cities, 3o we used

‘ /1.6 &Mlﬂ‘? _ : - g2
to do that and a’pﬁ-&m couldn't eat without salt because he had t» Hee atzpe L )

Kb 'hﬁ“

L
the ﬂheat( ?) ai the bread, Without salt they used to get a s:ckness’ the name

'fs‘mgw,ff Y _ |
of 'sing ig—the—Feowsor the jaws swell up and you couldn't eat and die
- ’T&m%a/ *
af starvation
.}::Q‘ Youmean from the lack of salt?
" 1A Lack of salt,
| f'jQ . Is that why salt ia go important?
I’ A Oh yes, salt prevents Eﬁé’" s@é&‘ﬁ%mt was the name.
f,_r;‘gi . What language is that?
- A
i &\A'. I really don't know,] think it's 2 Russian it's a kind of it may be a C‘WI’M
-“?xpression. I don't think it's a medical thing.
Q. I didn't realize that it had a natural physiological basis in the body's
need for it.
A, OH singa, it was awful,\d{i%;hout salt. And then it At el m e;;épfi;a

salt,so we used to take whatever jeweli'y we had and go there and exchange

it for salt,

Q. This was in 1917 after the Revolution.
A, That's right oh yes, that was after the War.
Q. Let's go back a little bit, [Now when you were born your father was

. . -1
doing what? What kind of a family.#¢% /M o
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A, My father had two jobs, two businesses, One during the summer

and the other in the winter. During the summex} he was they call it in

J
R ugsia 57?.5@ i |eL It means, a person who expedited the movement of certain

goods from the railroad,

Q. Like a dispatcher?

A, No, not employed ag. Not emrmployed. My father was involvedwyou
see Germany needed meaty "gley didan't have enough meat,So they would fmy

geesﬁj geeséwere in Russia, 50 the Jews on the borderline with Germany threy

Came v

Q. Geese farmers,

A, Geese farmers and they would go into deep Russaia inio actually .
K ursk

W

Earwch and all around the cities and buy from the farmers the geese, 1oad;

——y

them in a carload, 1400 to a carload and send them to Germany. But geaaé

macat Stop/

w==FstopPed. They cannot go without food or without water for more than a; :
day and a half,
Q.  Otherwise they will die on the way.

A, Die on the way,and the worst of it was,when a carload of geese wonld
g T

come to Germany it would just enter the borderline, they would find o'ne_-{g ose
" :.:'- g‘ ]
dead they would condemn the whole carload Because they were afraid of some
. A

Y

\
kind of emdemicfgo they had to be careful §o when the geese come,my father

had a big 105 about a block long that had places to keep carloades of geese; .\s
Wl'fg'l I L
1400 places-to the fence,

"
Y

2. So they would let the geese out of the train. L
& a"é’b P, could suwim %\‘;
A. Yes and they water for them, that they weuld-swing 80 he was the ¢

ot pran h
Pz-ment;gxé/so the geese would come they would unload them and they would
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come about 15/20 carloads a day., They would unload them}éet them down

to the ground.;,

Q. That's more than 24, 000 geese.
2>

A, Yes, sure. That's right,and feed themﬂand the following day load

. them again and send them all the way out to the nearest gtop which was in

“Brest-Litove K- _
Bﬂs‘ts‘w'ato'fhat's where they would stop. So thai's the summer job my

-fathér was busy with., Winter, he used to buy stones, sell it to the city,

Wltresir Aad

C:I.t’," government to pave the streetsi\td fix,ﬁ'o ® was supplying them with

!
!

stones where he would buy them also somewheres away from small towns

away from the cityngo that was the job.

gl e> Was your family comfortabie, financially ?

A, Yeah.

Q. Would you say you were middle class or lower middle class or upper
*or what?

A, We were middle class. Don't forget, /ﬁlere were five brothers going

to achool and three daughters.

Q. You mean of the children?

A, The children and they had to payﬂfor eﬁ:and every one. At that
) rubles
tirne it was about 160 rubbles a person.
Q. So you had four brothers and three sisters.
Wo-
A, I had four brothers. There were five brothers and three sisters,
(3. Eight children and your mothetr and father. ¢
Like '
A, Yeah and he had to provide them., The gprrnasia cost a lot of money.
Q. Andg all the children had a gynmaasia.

A, All the children had a gym'na.siq, all of them. Some weat to college
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t . it
but then the War broke out, "MJ*ZO/ M W j :
Q. Were you the oldest or the youngest
. I'tn the oldest . .
W@z&e Llpocdemt ¢
1 let's see if I can guesa no husedomi(?) gut your father

was a Hl“}’l"} d

fskenazic
A, He was an e&e}l{rena:utic Jew.“ot a H@gtd y nota M raﬁ gut my
grandmother belonged to a rabbi €7 she was ... bud de*/w_%p

Q. She did, it didn't matter ?

A, it didn't matter because she couldn't .+ LW%% “’Wg
Q. She had no cratroldoét- awg.

A, That's right, it didn't matter.

ums
Q. Did you live in your, home?
A, Yeah,
0. It had to be pretty large then,
A, It was a large house, :; ;
Q. Can you describe it? *’
A, It had, I had an extra room for myself,
Q. You didp,that was very unusual. E
A, - That was unusual but I am telling you, We built , big house, .hera wap

Tt o tant /<
a small house next to it which we rented out, ceuldnitget rent so much

QA prtV AN A X gmalld Asrctie. o :
because mostly it was to help out'\ nt we lived in a very big houses We had !

a master bedroom for father and mother, \A-)e had three rooms for'childrép '1

Kabinet A
and I had used to call it a caba—ne-t-(—?—)Ja room of my own, "
Q. Like an office, ' :

A, Yes. ‘ \
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Q. Did you sleep there too?

A, Yeah,
Q. So/were you the ohdy one that had. your own rootm.
Al The oldePlson. I had that and&dining room and a living room and a
' Yo be rmodlen. s Shacks

porch with screens onﬂand a kitchen and then we had built in swelves, Then

1

Il

e

;1.-_ of course we had the buildings, the outside building of hay and a cow,

Q , (Oh, you did. Now your mother had help I an presuming.

/_5(.'. W&Aﬁﬁ_

A We had caok, a girl ker job was tcfcook)and a girl to take care of
f}‘"ﬂr QU i
ﬂl}e hou.-.e or the building and themto take care of the needs of the ya.rda

L)v‘l)
éhoppmg wood., Mother waa)l don't know she may ha.ee been spoiled child-

= hood. She was raised not by her parents but by her mother's brother that

when she marrmd/\she thought that she could marry someone bette §he was

" " dida't have any children. He was well to do so they spoiled her. She didn't

! have do anything and when she mavrwd father and mother were cousms;go

the frustrated intellectuale3o she began to complain about illnesses and every

tlme she didn'’t feel sc good they called the doctor. The doctor would come

| wmm&oyb (2) WhEY sl Vacd wao -
a_md what she told us. The doctor sa.1d leave her in the room;i.ock

f
!Lhe door and don't mind, $he'll be well. In other words, there is nothing

f.vrong with her, But of course father wouldn't do that and then she developed
an angina, heart cn’ndition,go that was quite a job. She couldn't stand noisee

/E/he pavement as I mentioned before was rocks\go the cars didn't have tires.
i

\lﬁo it would make noise and’leve rynme she would be supprised she would get

we Jidn - st
that feeling of a heart a,tta.ck;go ever—thougiTwe pought nitroglycerin tablets
So
in those days,there—werenome, we used to take a piicher of hot water with
W Learmed o Lake cacs pf o

mustard and put her hande in that, But to avoid these itolses father bought
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2. et

Jecauate WW
hay and he got permission from the md placed hay dbo#t a half 2 block

one way and half a block the other# was a cornet%zzﬂthe wagons wouid pass

-

7
by it)wouldn't make any noise. That's how he took care of the princess. -

Q. Well then he did try to take care of her,
A, Oh yes, he did.
Q2. Rut don't forget she also had eight chxldren)which is _no small 'oblt
Fsold g, Farlow LA /Wh%
A, Oh yes, and of course chere were cousm%&nd family Emg—s side'
S 2t '

wasn't wealthy so it was up to father and his brother and his uncie to pr omde

will,

whatever necessary to mernbers of the family especially one gister and Mg,,,_,

grandmothér was alive to support heS and then to support most of the fa.m'ily
of my mother's side. They were his cousins, I told you family, But they
w ould come and stay with us one at a time or two,and help mother for five ,'

or Bix wéeks,\go he needed room for them too.

Frare.

Q. So there was always a coming and 2 going, always & coming and a
going, always something: Plus eight children.

A, Right and then there's something else. I mentioned before the peoﬁlé
used to come from the border towns of Germany to buy geese and they wi‘%uld
send our;t péopié to do the buying,buy ten, twelve, fifteen, eighteen geese

from ?fach fa.rﬁie:; And naturally you had to cover a lot of ground and then |

_ . . ﬁ
bringfit together,so these people,the peddlers with geese,who w'er&f..(:omingé
they :meeded a place so they would eat with us,so that they could see father ‘i
Aand feé other-So our house was like a big shopping center all the time, n;:'iei%‘ I
and_; go;s_e,and noise. . | . 11
Q) Se when you look back on it, Mr. Woll, was it pleasant or not? é

1.

A Was it pleasant? It was very pleasant for us, the youngsters to sit M
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listen to the converaatiom&hd father used to always send us awa%@o on do

your homework, \Fo on and read;gecause he was afra.iéb and it is an inte_;zésti.ng
thing about our father. I never had a kiss from my father, Never- a good word’
but mother used to tell us that he loved us so much, But he never it was the

old time people displaved it never showed it. We onthe other hand, the

?
" childresn would never (END OF SIDE ONE)

S QL You were saying when you were sitting at the table_!)someth:i__ng.

A, We would never sit at the table the children before father gat down.
A I

L Ais aeal ut

' r.‘-:',l‘?hat was a natural thing with us.gnd father had o s at the head q_f the table_)
i al the time. Nobody would sit in his chair, Lhat was father's And while we

- never saw a display of affection) neverthelesg, we respected father very much,

L

" thanks to mother, \ghe used to tell us how eager he was to see thai we were
well and 8o on, gut father was always complainingJWhy don't vou do this, why
don't you do that.&nd I used to tell 'hirrl, Iﬂdid my homrewo rk, I bave no more

) homework.git down and write and I at that time developed a talent for

: QM@/ . —
writing -peeple's compositions and it was the case of Bé//xs, /4/{?7{, a gt~
W decieded. 7

Q. That wae already 1913.

.A Approximately and I was about 15 years old. Sc:.a)i wrote an article

about attorneys and about the whole thing)and as a youngster I poured out all
L could didn't even consider what one may =ay and what one shouldn't say,
' @-Mf Aarl.
J&nd one day father said Why don't you sit down and write, o listen
/

et e
to thre thinggnd #e 2lso had a tendency to go into the kitchen and listen to
the cook and the stories that they would tell.
Q. Isn't that like children all over?

A, That's right.
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-
2. Father said)t's tabboo you stop going to the kitchen. You need
something, Qall, she'll bring it to you. I don't want you to waste tim e
liatening to these stories that they keep on tellingpgo we had no business
in this. S0 he used to show this composition of mine to some of his friends,
@.nd one of them said, you want to go to prison together with your family /
‘gecauae should these paper# fall into the hands of a policeman or an offlc er
?/you licked, because at that time the government-so he tore it.But he was
p
proud that I did, But an'jthe same tokerbl used to also write in Hebrew, E—I¢
would also pick up something I wrote»ﬂe wasn't 2 scholarz ﬂe couldn t make
derd n dail f
out but he would listen to me reading it and he would go and if ay VJ.e.tor ha
would ghow it to hin and that weas it.

. So instead you're saying, tell me if I am wrong,I hear you saying)h;é? _

wasg proud of you but you never heard him say I love you,

A, No, never a kiss and never a good word, never,
Q. Did you fsel that? 3
&.. %
A, I inherited it, I am the same way. Although I know theﬁ“ﬂ of if
R

but that's how we were brought up. .
1

Q. You know it and you can't do anything about it, 1

A, Ufeel Father funny if I would allof a sudden, I do now, my dat}ghter;,
i

I would give her a kiss SO-matimes.gecause she would kiss me all the r,ime;

I would,but I feel..- / N \\k
Q. You couldn't do it to @ aon., Could you do it to a son. Kiss a son.
A, '. My son the sare thing. |
Q Do you kiss hir ?

A. Yes.
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3. You couwld?

A, Sormetimes. But we don't display this kind of affection, never:

Wb oo

w&s&m missed it, we wanted it and the ounly thing that mother kept o

v

telling us and agsuring how much he loved us,

@a. Wag your mother an affectionate worman?
_A.. . Mother, yes, yveah she was,
Q - So even though she was a princess,she was loving. :.II
A, Yeah,
Q It's very hard on the children not to be told,
ﬁi\ ' Defin:i'tely. used to argue with my father, why don't yourever tell

me it's good. You always tell ms the other thing, He said the good things

I don't have to tell vou,

. G But you do have to. ,
_ it Chit wre hein WW
A, I know, but-that-westhe—way at-thetime.
. I know, I talked to one man who said his father used to heat him

) every day whether he did something wrong or not and the theory being that

if he missed a day +:.

A, He would be worse, We never,%en 1 was a chi].d)mother would spank

gme\féther never did.&nd she would never say, I'l} tell daddy about,iteBecause
E:Ishe knew that it would hurt him and he wouldn't do anything;go gshe did it .

Q. That's different,
{A : But father would take us to synagogue.
ll(} . Wae he a religious man?
!A He was not, no,
i

0, But you say he waa a traditional Jew,

A, Traditional Jew,but something happened you see,\ﬁ!hen his father died
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and grandma remamedA he JMG&I% 7/-{5‘“) not a synagoguew‘ﬂa? %ﬂ-’
Ay diyert.

y and they kept on doing that for years, until they decided no sonsa.@w lived

ina basement"ﬁxe upper fleor wase rented out, ghe had her own hcmse.geuded &?0

%o build a synagmre@nd’naturaily who did they talk to but the gon, the oide&t
|

son of the family,&'nd father agreed.gnd then they built a synagogue,a big

oneaA corner one, It's an interesting story how the way they did it without

having money and collecting and selling sigs{?)} to people and each and eviary

feut

one wanted to build the eastern wall and promise everybody, lgnd you'll get"

2]

it give $300 and then when they finished and completed it was some 'wna,:rogue .

D
e ot Al pedly,
they all came, now we have two orps 5o they have only 28 gesats'in
the eastern wall. PeopleJ they yelled and yelled but what else could they dd.«
after all big shots,but three of them were given certain aeats‘they‘ were the

n olsest ones, so somehody suggested, thﬁw—au}:‘ and it ca.rr\e ouf a;;_ tck would

have it;,they all shut up,yo more uEven God himself said it was all right,

Q. Y:u mean the three noisey ones got the seats by the eastern wall.
A, Yes/\an@ not a ‘Nord,gut we didn't have a lot so father naturally attended

there, Wea didn't have a chance to enjoy it very much because that was the
seciond War broke out., Senond World War broke cut and the commander. _

of the army; an uncle of the Csar,

Q. " No the first world war, :

' 7
A, | That was the first one, t

? |
0. You are thinking of 1905, then the first one was 1914 right.
Sedrngd \low,ul ..i:_rl
A, So they chasad out all the Jows who lived in the towns on the bordex
line, a
2. That was the first World War,
o

CAL And e father was always at the railroad station had te do with hla
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he and a few others when they took to meet these viciims of the law the
Czar's uncle and sometimes take them off the train and place them locally

hecause they were sent all the way inyo Hussia where they wouldn't find a

i Ml ruid e : ALt ik,
Jewdorme of them}rabbis)and some of thewm Mmmﬁoﬁ o they would
4 4
take them off here wouldn't let them go fgrthex) and arrange for them, Where

~de you put a trainload of people,P the synagogue 8o the synggogue was given
‘over to them MW couldn't use the synagogue auy rnore and they moved in
E:a.‘nd ihey lived there,

Q S50 these wpeople actually from further west. In other words they

Feom Prland R an

w_lere coming from this way towards you. , And then your father and a couple

.:"of cthers toole theny off the trains

A,

f’g’%@ o .« j/}gd/&ﬂ%"e’m' zfgf/gé%% -ﬁ«;cé(

a Not all of therngihat's how I managed to mest the greatest rabbis.

‘ihey would coma to ocur house,.,

. And they stayed in the synagogue. How long did they stay there?
A, Some of them stayed a yeayr, Sorne of them a litile moyre and of course
“T;ZMJ‘)&M«M

‘there waes a question of supplying wiem with food and clothing. 4 EBYOungster

'that I was,l got hold-the government had certain organizations commry Q"““’Z;

ozgamza.uons that would supply coats and suits gnd clothmg so I would come
e Prtreha Ld»? l, %0

and get it &t that time the Poles,, they had aJ—int &strzbution éoamnuttee.l

would go to them and they would hand it cut together with our rabbi%who

-@'as interested in it and helped me out, I wasg a ynurzgkséter and I was able to

w ok my way through and get it for I;hen*/td.nd so we supplied themn with

c}othes and winter clothes, Ehey didn't have anything,

Q. But we started t“nis)when f asked you whether your father was a

raligions man, You said no,
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A, He wasn't. He used to go, I'll explain to you why.
Q You mean in the traditional sense he was not.
A, He had to sign a paper one day and it happened to be nn Friday

ché/bé) o3 .
night and mother feli uneasy. Here the children are sitting, it's Ghavas

he didn't mind it,ﬁo she said take it in the other room 8o the children
wouldn't see. $he was more religious than.
. Well, that's not what I mean by religious,but okay. She was more
observant of the rules.

M platrvanile ()
A, But we had a horme with Jewish ccuneil in the center., We obmerved
every holiday faithfully and go to synagogue every Saturday. We had o go
to synagogue,
3. The whole family.
A, The whole family, father with his sons and we lived at a2 time_rfétiuer
wag very proud of his children.ﬂnd especially his firet born, me,énd when I
was about eight years old I began to read the 'I‘or_a'\in the synagogue on
Saturday evening. Saturday moraing,they wouldn't let me,l was too young

wad

and it was too much)but this I would clo,:énd one day my fathe:ht-hle father o# JL~
someone else) bought me a gift, ice skates.—sl:) I went out on the sidewalk and
skated,we didn't go to a rink,lé/e didn't have such a thing.but around the house:
and cne of the congregants of the synagogue saw me and he saidghame on you,
you're skating like every non-Jewish boy and then you come to read the Toralh -
T he skates \?ere taken away.

oh WA
Q. S0 life was pretiy restrictive in that sense, right,

el
A, Oh yesJit wasg restrictive and we lived in a certain Llimit, We was

a number of things that we had to take care of. On the other hand we had also
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experiences very pleasant for us because it v-rzs customary in Russia
w2

~especially in the citiee,that the poor people, very poor, they would go and
A omeéa/
beg. They wouldn't beg in the streets but they had their Redes that they.

knew,
0. Were these the ones with the chains and the shirts are you talking

about Jews or non-Jews ?

A, Non-Jews but the beggers were Jewish. But they didn't have any
chains.

(N But the Christian beggers there were some.,«

A, The Christian beggere were something eclse, they were starvingcg’ut

I'n talking about the Jewish beggers, my wounld come {0 our house every
Thursday and mother would send out to them coins,gch one, they would come
about 40/50 and she would hand out coins. When I was eight years old she
took me, gave me some of these. coins and saidJ_hand them out and at that
time I knew the value of a coin because for a peany you could go and buy a
piece of 'cakevgo I knew the value of it.&lthough we never were permitted to
go and buy these things. Mother provided, There was candy in the house
that fatirer would eewd out. Instead of giving me a penny to go out and buy
candy, here's a candy, that‘s'al]_,go she taught us that oney has value not
only for what you can bubiut also what good you can do with it and that I
appreciate, Ever sincg then I have learnednthat as a child of eight, We were
not allowed to play cards.But on Hanakah we would all sit with father and

mother and the relatives and all of the children and play cards, and+l—the

CW v[{.//g

seaond game and win a penny. It was just to show to the children the way

% @ it we
Hanakah is and we would have Hanakah s0 that woutd be used.
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Father noticed that one of my brothers is too eager, l'le is not just playing
but he wante to win, ﬂo more,‘q{!;e whole idea of cards out, We didn't play
bacause he was afraid/he would become a gambler, That was out. No
more. That's how we were restricted,But at the same time,when I grew

a little_ older)l became involved in socialist activities, 'We had to have

meetings, where are we going to have themgu we used our house,

Q.. ' You did,

A, Yen, with father's perml;:m?ﬂdéjéher w%d stand og&azd Aé W e
watch if a policeman would come, hewouldtetius., That's what we had, Wiﬂ*

Q. Was your father politically oriented in anyway,

A, No, ao, he had,~to give you an example,he had 2 little shop

Q. Excuse me, if you get tired., ‘

A, No, no, no I'm not tired. You see, I'm getting out of a cold and

that's why=in addition,father wanted to heip out a relative and he sterted with

a- At
him a shop in our yard, in Qu-i'-bui_lding,\évé had swt building. What was the

shop? Making powder to sell.

Q. Powder ?

A, Face powder;

(3. You mean for women?

A, That's right}and would pour in a little perfﬁme in it and two girls

were working packing it.

2. What was it made of ?
Tale..
A, Pemdp, That's all and a little perfume and sell 1;9 the peaaant34
M,A’W L.fd) W j’g‘ 'y

e
lhe city folks would go the drugstore and buyflth&t%-o one day my youn%er

brother, the next one)passed away a.lready)he came to father4after dinner, %«V
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sae we had Jdinner at home always and lunch at home. With father even

in his business he could come home and eatAnd he said, father you have

to raise the salary of the two girls,@;:herwiae 'l pull & strike o father
Jokingly sa.id)@kay I can't afford to rai(se,@o instead of giving you tuition
fee}l'll give it to them as a raise,awd )/ou ;ﬁm-e to call a strike but [
could see that the way he spoke with a smile on his face, he enjoyed it that
his son had such an attitude towards this thing,&nd they got the raiee)that's

besides the point.gut he jokingly saic;)l have no monef,l can't-afford,but this

is how he was,

2. Did you speak Yiddish at home?
Srnce
A, Yiddish. You see there ioo my answer i8 incorrect. k-seems we
/’)yﬁL’T}/ﬁL:u

had a nemme{?) 5

/1 Yah ya, <
Q. A Polish neana?
A, Russian. She would talk Russian to .ua.go we waild also talk Russian.

So but among ourselves with our father and our mother it was a-lwaﬂysﬁ'k/eﬁ/
~ Yiddish.

Q2. So you learned Russian easgily because you had %&6 '
i wrat
A, Sure, Well I wouldn't call it Russian it was Russian,/’ white Russian ,o,é

_ foh Khiar Ahokho /. ;‘{bsk}dzzl
or what they call heflausky: A peasant is called hovho @0 it was iroflausky

lg‘kind of language that s gramatically wrong and it has all kinds of idioms,
that was what we learned f.rorﬁ the girls,

Q. But there ig a ;& Russia); dialect

A, That's what we were, that's white Russian,

Q. That's the woe we or you learned. We have something in the library

I remenber one time and people came and asked me if I could translate it
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and I said it looks like Russian but there is something wrong because there
were certain combinations of letters that dind't look similar to Russian and
then finally we traced it to white Rngsian but I didnot know there was a.r
white Russian language. It was white Russian,

A, As a matter of fact,.«

Q. What's the univeraity in White Russia. Thée is a university in

P
white Russia and what's the big one.

HineK  Grodng

A, In Minseh., Grommret has no university, It is already Lithuanian.
MinsKk.
Q. Maybe it was Mimsch.
Minsk dadit.
A, You see I grew up without knowing the white Russiane had a language

L
of their own. We knew that the peasants speak a language li&:tﬂﬁ-s gramatically

ank-

wrong wiren they use words-for instance to givenan example.,:In Russian

sun  ganta€ | sslntz <
the sen is ,,(Vou don't pronounce the "1' in there the word is senche but
saAtz€&
you don't pronounce. In white Russian they don't put the L they say setrehe
A= pregunce & -

&o {t's hard to get. The time that we began to realize that and learn about it
was after the Revolution and every small nationality began to put out whatever

they had and that's where I found it out.

Q. 50 you spoke Yiddishﬂyo‘w you must have had a Hebrew education,
ed + |
AL Yes, I went to C«" LV and then father had a very bad experience in

Chede raobe, Ha
inder. The teacher would sit at the head of the table and had a cane in his M

band and he or we were learning about Jacob taking the right
aM/{__ "[U'M
and I wae 80 much engrossed in it that he cheated so I said,what-did-they
1] T
cheat and the Rabbi with s cane hit rve over my head and I knockedqthe

table and broke the nose,

e e
Q. That's a very upsetting story by the way, that Jacob Essis story bﬂ Wayv
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when you. first read it, . ‘ -
Look, alnd cheae Arnsw me can Tt a M%mefa) y
A, Of course our sadish find it difficult to Justify,so they cover it up

V. gt vhe Tk BFAL N Aiflennd s Eoact ntd Aure

wit}}q ideag tha-t——ﬁ-lts-t—ef-alLﬁle_diﬁ:maeeAm&l the right of first born,but

,&Zama,ﬁaé,m o Yo
this is like writte:}_% icej&ﬁé water, Boesn't gitt. The fact of the

YL
ho AtK. %alli wtl.c
matter is that this is what-d4=is and there are many things but &sn you

ngT il ffptres

arart thinking and seeing when you grow oldethO I camne home and caused

/LWL)Z%A%{, ere c[aesz

a job with my nose and so on and father decidec}we used to go to Hewer from

se+3
morning until evening and winter time, Russian winters setting at 4:00 and
cheder
you would have to go in the dark,so he decided no more Hager. He engaged

J

a teacher who would come to our house and teach me and my brothers,three
hours a day and would get extra pa.;ﬁd that was when I began io have a
different kind of education. Frankly the teachers changed every two or three
years. Some of them were doing an excellent job. One of them,I recall,
decided rather than to teach me and my brothers the things you were
supposed tc;,he would play chess;‘g;: we played chess,

Q. Nobody told your father,

A, No. Then one liked Hebrew composition and he detected that I had
abiiit‘% go all I did he was my teach_er?write compositions and he would read
and make corrections and tell me keep on ﬂrriting,so inatead of learning

anything Iddid writing. That's how I got my Jewish education.

Q. Now wae this supposed to include religious instruction as well 7

A, Yes. There was only one kind. I@M/Lfﬂbﬂ) . k%ﬂttwo mb ol K
Q. At that time you weren't leagning modern Hebrew yet.
A, That was Hebrew that we learned.

0. Scripture Hebrew what about spoken Hebrew, modern Febrew.
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A, We developed it ourselves.

@, You did.
A, Sure, We didn't have the vocabulary that later on we developed and WX

began to read rnodern literature.‘gut that was it. Don't forget, I've had an
experience here with my job with igsuing licenses to teachers, Hebrew
(;Wma 2oy and o lieiaatar: |
teachers. To giveazmexampte, @ne day a man from lsrael came and I asked
him what he had, papers and all this and I told him what he is to do and
speaking in Hebrew of course and I see he sits and loocks at me, he doesn't
budge. I saic’i)what are you looking at me. He said I'm listening you are
speaking the language of the bible, It waen't the language that he was
accustomedﬁt was thé bibleﬁecause' we have no other source just the bible
and that's all. No literature, we don't use it daily,f}!ow we begin to use it
duily L0V «
Q. So he was astonished at your speaking to him in Biblical Hewbrew,

A, Yes, he said you speak the twgﬁé: . I find it difficult now to accept

some of the expressions in Hebrew they use in Israel,

(2. The modern Hebrew you mean,
. A £
A, Not mode::zz Jt is an illiterate for instance they will end a sentence
oA £ t ' . - *
on tow letter afo and then you have ,QZL ﬁé g{&é’—f/ g ,a/ffz/?&a) P
- — 4
{3 But that's not a complete sentence,

A, Mhat‘s how they talkpSo I disliked it very much, But they now use a
MMM Jhey

vecabulary that'ig) first of a,].l)1 new terms and,creating and they keep on
changing, modifying thern to be supposed to give it she special Hebrew 7
éo and they have a lot of Arabic words now in there and [ find it difficult

very often even though I became here a professional translator of Hebrew.—el%

f{aldz /ﬂb Mt
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a. And you still have a problem.
A, Yes.,
- Q. Now in theae)when you had these teachers eoming to the house,all

five boys were being taught, When the teachers were coming to the house. r+

A, The oldest two and the youngest two théy still went to sachool. The
youngest two-and the oldest tw Aha,d the}l teacher,
Q. Well there should be three. Weren't there five boys.
7 : :
A, , Five boys but the youngest one was born much later_,ﬂe was 14 years

old when they came to America,ﬂe was the younger one. Of five only one

femains, (our égied «» Sorry I interrupted you.

Haitd Tanasbi Aarenis
Q. p In the Hebrev.,} you learned kanoch{?) and to pray, #} and

o
then reading and writing,Yau did learn {G&Lmn Now then you had to have a

secular education from what you say, You also had a secular education,

A, Oh yes,l went to gymnaasia,

Q. In order to get into gymnasis you had to have something else didn't
you.

A, At home I learned to read on my own,\&é used to get a paper, the

newspaper a Ruassian paper. Father subseribed and the paper, the name
Brezhew{iy Vede mpste _
of the paper, was Bregevier Vadermanks(7) so I heard the words and | began

A
to read the heading&go this is big snathat is how sur—fertirer-amwd mother and

I finally learned the alphabet and I Iearned to read.
Q. Now would you tell it for me again so I can,.swhat's the name of the
paper ?
Birzhevia BW“S“" Burse g‘ e
Ewlseﬁ.,in Rusma its Eu-i-aa,You know they&xchange the
C?Aut’//we cael it

(END OF TAPE #1).
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Q. So it was like 2 commercial newspaper that your father fecué'
Al Father used to get.

(O Was it Russian or white Russian paper,

A, No, thati was Russian., Whitae Russi#n}hardly)before the revolution

they didn't even know there was such a thing and then they used to publish .. ~
they even do it nowj they publish‘edhliterature. No writer writes a book el-x?
that language, It is a peasant expression of the Russian language., Sol
learned to read and then time was to go to gymnasia. Gymnasia was all
day and the Hebrew teacher would come in the afternoon.
2. Did you have trouble getting into gymnasia ?.
A, That's what I am going to tell you. Now to enter the gymmuasia,
G'OM“E"J
there Ilwas the government controlled gymnasia and there waa)and we had in Grewarrel
.a privately owned Jewigh gymnasia and with certain restrictions,I'll explain
to you what they arec8o the two of us)l and my younger brothexr, the two of
us)together we learned Hebrew and together we prepared for the exams '

k-

to enteir the gymnasis. 7To enter the gymnasla-the government-but the
tuition was very small there was mﬁ%ﬂﬂ%ﬁa Jew wanted to
ente::-’ hel had to pay the tuition for fourteen non-J ews go that they could take
in the :'fflew.

Q. (147

A. , 14 non-Jews} pay their tuitmn make they-go and g‘;ﬁiegvm they
“fwz/ 20 vl A Ak, . wrtuld . Al A,

pumeras G/Mlﬁlf_s >
Q..,; Is that what that Rimercus-clowsess meant in action. I thought it

j'_{ﬁst meant that they wouldn't admit #my more than a ceriain number,

gO so

Q No, no it meant you wero going to get a percentage and the percentage

P
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was 14 non~-Jews to one Jew.

Q. But the Je;ph;i:oﬂz%f 5(%&4%/4& o eniae, y/,ydg{;z% ’UL%{M@ i

A, Of course, otherwis n addition to that)you had

to have high grades, Well, we took the exam, my brother had high grades
and he happened to have the 14 non-Jews without having to payj;ey were
registered. He was accepted in the government gymnasia., [,who hadlower
grades than he)l was accepted ir‘xmthe privately owned Jewish gymnasia. Now
the difference was)that at the end of the fourth year and the sixth and the
eighth year we had to have special exams. Teachers of the governmant
gymnasia would be delegated to give ug exams and if we passed we used to

dQPMa}s[Q 2Xamenl s 9&9_»2[;5!’
call it jSepataly exama&ee%teacher is a delagat@s)and they naturally hated

Jews and they hated our going to colleges and so on, 80 they were asking
questions)not necessarily part of what you studied. You were responsible
for everything and tuition fee was much higher there,

Q. At the private school.
T s &
A, At the private school, tyee Jewish owned school, So I had the fourth

year exam, the sixth year and then the eighth,which gave me the right to
W!#' e mumeite

enter college and there again the same story, there you had te wﬁafﬁpﬁa/ﬂoM
So Wk X wao, e, yn Fad
a2 certain percentage of Jews ,But the Revolution broke out, F began to

pe

g0 to medical school andﬂhad to cut out.

Q. You wanted to go to medicalachool.
A, Yeah, I wanted to go to medical school and I cut out and that is where
I heard my parents are in trouble,ﬁat some of the rebels against the
A L Y0 .«
government"as 1 sald before)they used to came) b&w‘ﬂfl g0 I had to come

home,
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PR

.Av

.

A,

You weren't home ? : +
Kharko KharkoV, &
No in F-‘—-P&ﬁk-l-injin the university., Fepaldém=ted the university.

5o you started. '
Lot e teve The

Yeah/l started and my brother started and he herd difficuli:y:)but he

too had to give up in the rmiddle, He almost got through there. He had to

finigh when he came here and get his degree as an engineer so he got his

degree here and he got immediately a job with the Federal Power Commission

So
in Washington, and that was it,
G—om&l
But the gymnasium was in Germrell,
Geom 940

o3

The gymnasium was in gomamel,
P

And you weat to the gymanaium until what year,
Until the end of the eighth year,

I know but what year was it in,like 19 what?
Lot e reeatl s

I don't remember,
?
Wag it during the war,
During the war yes., A %ln«& N‘WMJ,

WL eaa @\gowe. o+ ow. . >
Frguea-it-out, Yc‘su were born in 1898 and when did you start gymmasium

I think in my eighth year,

So that's about 1906 and how many years is gymansia, éig-t) s\o it is
- "

1914 so you would finish it just about when the war atarted. So you were not

home.

A,

Ql

war ?

AQ

K harket™ - \"{

No)then 1 wae home and I went to Fremetin, \
‘ \ H
. _ L

Do you remember being home after the World War started, the firat

i

After the first World War started)l didn't leave homae, :!I'_w-a.s toojs';._

B
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young.

Q. You were still at home 80 you must have still been in gymnasia
then, Do you remember anything about the War itself how it affected
Gomof Gromek

G-orarrral, How the war affected Gorrvrei

A Welsl the first World war had an affect that I wasn't able to remember

I was just too young.

Q. I mean in the city itself,
A, Bringing new people to the town, that's all, the population increased.
. People ﬂee'ﬁg.

F}ee.lng ad—.

but people who lived-Jewish people one or two families
) fol
Y

in a village,they found«safety was with the rest of the Jews but then there

A, a Not only

wasg also restrictions on the part of the government in the business of the

Jew in the village. Certain things he couldn’t do that he used to do before.
For instance, a Jew used to make a living from selling whiskey to the
peasants. The government took it away, he wasn't allowed to do it anymore,
2 During the war ?

A, Before the war and during the wa.r;-go they had to run, ’Jh/ey had no
business. Then there were other difficulties made:Sb gome of them found —
when there were five or six familiea)it wags more or legs safer this way

3o they come to the city ﬁnd then some uof them had children they wanted them
to grow up Jewishly)o they had to come to the cityrgo the popilation increased

during the) before the second War, that was a different story,

Q. Wait a minute, how late wereyoun in Europe?
G-omel . .
A. I left Gomemel in 1919, 4 Came¢ Ko Lw 7920,
6"0&;41-@/’

Q. I don't want to go past that time. So Gess=el itself as far as you
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remember was not affected by the war, wasn't occupied.

AL No i wasn't occupied.

Q. And it wasn't shelled or bombarded but there was a population

increase,

A Population increase and that's about all.

Q. Was there any food shortage or any other kind.

A, No during the first War there was no food shortage, no problem.

Q. Did you have Russian Jews coming into your c:ii:y.?'

A, Russian Jews ?

Q. Yeah cormning from the East,

A Nao, Uo.

2. S0 the war goes on and}ggn comes the collapse of the Russian
outy

government and the, Czar Now in your family was there political awareness
D avcd Lee )

of what was going on in Russia?

A, Yeah, I was active and my brother/% ‘
Q. That's right you were a socialist. Now which pariy did ycu belong
to?
Feaele Z1047 ¢
A, The Jewish party of the Labor 7 iomat/,, Padenctery. My brother

'E’mm(a )
didn't agree with me and he joined the Socialist Party of the Vméi I-Ie e Ao tut é ,

didn't want to accept the theory that the Zionists have that they will ha ve
all the problems solved, He said [ want to solve them right here. So

we went different ways. Then of couree {riends influenced a great deal.
wé- L
ét that time we acquired a number of friends and yeu became active each

/

one in his own way.

E)C[ ¢ pﬁ/ﬁ(z,z o
Q. S0 he was active in the P¥8 and you were active in the m
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But neither of you were active in the Social Democratic or the Social
R evolunonary Socialist Revolutionary party,

f"{"L‘V:v.(_wrxusi:s were a.ct1ve b participated in that definitely,
Q. Were you following what was happening in the whole Socia!i.st
movement at the International congresses and so on.? %ZL& Afaw
A, I'did‘n't attend but I followed that.
Q. Now when they split, who was it the Bund&left the party,the

Socialist party and that left Lenin in control acwally.

A, Lenm waa in control that was why he was called Bolshevml. r wanted
| . Plekhanev aud 2he.
the makimum and the M@nsheviKs R wanted at least a mmimum for

the time being and he came in/Lenin came irband that is when he declared
the Revolution and that's whea the army.we were still at War with the

G ermans-and he said} go homepénd the Army went and you witnessed a

remarkable thing. Soldieragwe fighting eoldiers, those who were on the
way home were angry with the soldiers who still wenthand they were fighting

each other in every town whenever they would meet, Russian soldiers-and

J

chaos set in, There was chaos and tirey-eushed down the war stopped and
pvd G

the Revolution was declarac‘l)we vigited in Gem-m'e-l)around the outskirts of
¢ eoleale. -

G—eﬁaﬁ-rel)there wasg a bigpem-geete of a prince of the government and we
weren't allowed. the people weren't allowed to come in. The Revolution
broke so we all went there to see the palace and all thi%and after five days,
where not a single soul in Russia worked)there was no work everything
stopped, everything)completely.

Q. When was this 7

A, That was \x}hen ithe Revolution broke out,
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2. Do you remembver which days it was. It was in October.

A, I would have to look it upvgut the first five days,l walked the aisles

of the park up to my knees} in you know,we have the seeds the b}&f/k-ﬂﬂ’—w
in Russta; cemK e, Sem och Ke,

that we eat atcwneirers,

€ They are not sunflower seeds,

A, Sunflower seeds, we ate itﬂere wag so much 1 walked)this ig no

exaggeration)up to my knees in the shells of the sunilowers because peopie

walked down-of course that-haddeen 2 week,you wouldn't recognize the

palacel\bﬁat ever there was they tore it downfbut they realized that to keep

guing you have to eat. The bakers didn't bake.you couldn't get anything »

B’i/obydy workedﬁjt was a holiday,gut then they began fhe comuniats began to

ﬁaqh‘f‘mfj

demand more and more and that's where the treuble began. On one hand

you had the comunists) the Boishevﬂ:sj taking over}and on the other hand you

had bandits supposedly fighting the comunists and in the meantime robbing

!
and fighting the people. It wag an uareal life. >

1 Ao W Yo Y,
Q. Did your family You were witeneess to these things, you wore walking
knee deep jtha.t must have been an awful lot of people and an awful lot of
days just sitting and eating sunflower seeds.
A, That's right, the whole town, gverybody was there walking and eating
sunflowers. I'll tell you I'll never forget that picture. There were a number
of pictures that my eyes saw in connection with the Revolution.
2. Like what?

A, I told you the palace the firs: day,there were bewds with paper}walls

Fore .
cofered with beautiful things and on the fifth day they tesa-it downbecause

it seems that somebody said the Russin expression Grabn <, GCrablenoy
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i%b the things that the others rot{z‘befom you. o what ever they couldn't

o hecf

take destroyqund began to force people to go to work, There was no other

A
w aylyou couldn't get food,
Gomel J
2. - Now this was in Gererrmet itself, b aver
Gomeld (Interrapfion as guedes come in, o
A, In GorPrmel, )t was everywhere, ,\They had it in their own way, quite

differen't,gecause the echos of the Revolution came there.
. Only the echos.you are aaying the Revolution isself came.
A, . Yeah, we saw it we were meeting the trains.

What do you mean you were meeting the trains?
’J’ SKY@R o Jpaddites os.
A, A To Gm-re}( and we went to see him and we were Revolutionaryﬁ
Q. What did you do as a Revolutionary?
A, : t the Revolution)we had meetings and rmade plans and argued
and discussed all kinds of political resclutions that we we re going to

Auch

introduce and we were going to do this. Some questions someof us thought

A (Vegpte mm) .'

that the @&rden of g!en is coming down to us. That's my sister.
Gome| Ke
Q. You said you experienced the Revolution in Gormrel, right,andl said
7
how, How were you active and so you began lelling me you took part in
debates and regolutions and so on and some of us thought the garden of eden
had conie.
A, -B:;e__:fore' the Revolution we kept on thinking and believing that everything
w ill Bq-’ resolved.gut then the Revelution came and we saw a different story.
ﬁr st of all it didn’t happen immmediately but during the time there was shortage
. Lenin
of forod and d—raﬂta-r:(—‘?-)-had te permit small businessmen to go out and do
bvsiness in order to bring food and that was where we used to go wzth ot

Yo _ reAr Wt " Al \‘3 i,

bags, te ﬁrains wherwosslble; - &11 you needed was
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commi3San?
¢ jacket of leather and yell,I am a cersmuaesar and you would get anything

/
K hasteov™
you wanted, I myaelf used that on the way from Herder on the way home.

Q.  You did?
A, Yes, I couldn't get a2 train. I got stuck in a station there no iraine .
J
&L‘q ..‘d‘ T ’CQ

and I had no choice)li had o get ou}_ and there were a few \»'omerxﬂped'ple I
knew from homey they saw me, let's get out, they are staying there aiready
three days and I arm rushing home becuase of the report I got about the

dangers to my father and my niother. I also heard sometmrgulseﬂ‘;t m&&&ﬂ{(
Jhot Wi F am "-ﬁ%"“’a g

at the university while I was absent and they knew at-the—tinre—tire-Soriat=t

I‘MLW,d S orialists,

’ﬁ;ey condemned me to deathcﬁhd I was told ahead of iime so I fled from there
too}becauae they would have goiten me. In those days ihere was such disorder,

ihat people had guns carrying with them those who were entitled and those

¢ et EXchen kye
w ho were not entitled and anything s, he savying pees exeh&-mgm against

the wall and kill right there and then,/&ere were no two ways about itsdo 1
wasg rushing home and then I came into the man in charge of the station of
the railroad and I told hirn I am ruaning frorn the Uk rants o the

Fronher  Minsk,
frenteir near M;nseh the white Russian frontiersand [ had my staff with me

‘7
and I must get cut as faat as [ can, when is thenext irain. He said there is
an army tra,in passing by hera in about an hour, Ail right,gee to it and éZZ Cyvtal.
proseed-at=thetinre 50 lo and behotd he cleared a place in a car and I and
o
these old women and a couple of men, that's my staif cveshead auidiers

| ) we/.e, ndt aoked
saying)who in the heck is he taking)hut %Mmﬂ anymore becauss you

' od O . .
couldn't get an answer that was correct And I wént home like this in a special
trainfﬁzere was no cther wayrgo all you could do is bluff your way through

otherwise you had no chance,
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Q. You had no chance if you couldn't bluff. f”rﬁ%’
A, If yon couldn't bluft:/you couldn't get food, mguldn—t—myou
¢ ouldn't get by, You couldn't get from place to place. For traveling)each :
one had to have a special permit,everytime he is traveling. Try and get

it,you have to stand in line for days and then they atart asking questions,

s 0 you travel without,

0. You take a chance then, ' - ! .
e aretnd Vo //p&?@é?’ o Jenns W‘
A, You simply appeaz}ﬁ af I said Frokosky 80 a lot of nerve,on the

basis of your nerve you were able to get by,and ! dgid that,I had to use it.
The second time, it was different. The second time I was, traveling home from

K harhor

H.a-qn-r and I came to that station, That station is only one building for the
Field pfﬁlc‘

depot and the rest of it is filled and the f#H&® was covered with people, bach
one,they had a fire and sitting around the fire. It was a'ﬁf’;ighb and I
also)l traveledp instead of/ normally vou travel five hours;~I traveled two
days already,I was tired and hungryjt wa.s night)so I cam®@near one fire and
I sat down there and I think I fell asleep.&nd all of a sudden somebody hit

m 6 | What' 7

e get up. A'Woke up,What's the matter. A man sitting next to me and said,

/ﬁxese are very bad times,you have to keep away from traveling.gnd don't
fall asleep, The rumors here are very bad, ugly,&nd I didn't wear 3 army
uniform, I wore a coat which meant thatl arm a civilia,n,-Sc) naturally first
to go would be the civiliar:_s,.s‘o I thanked him and I didn't sleep any more.
Then we got into a freight car,We got in there dark and there were some
peq{ile there already from preceding stations and he sat near me., Who he

/
ia/or what he ig I don't know.

gi. You gtili don't know,
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_ ' Hins kK G-ome-) :
AL No, He is going also to Minsch and [ am going io Gessmsel it's .
on the way and in the dark I didn't know what or when, ﬁnd we were sitting
up all night long)approaching my horme town, 1 could recugnize the lights

of the suburban homes and I became very eager to get out of thie alveady,

And he held me back, HHe said take it easy, take it easy.

?
3. What language did he speal,
A Russian, Take it easy and as we approached,we heard from the
iTwao

outside)a man standing thereﬂlaas than about a vnile from the depot,$6 we
walk over that mile and be done with it. We heard someone sayingJ Everybody

el

outuénd then as they came near we the man standing there with a gun, a rifle

>
and he queatiorﬁ)ﬁJew or not.
. Favadeiy, Po U sa Ky |

F"o u ssk i #
A Pagudalky And there was a couple of Jews ahead of me,Nb sooner did
they say yes)ﬁey were hit with the rifle right there and then. I was lost what
am I to do,._go he held on to me. He iovllowed me.l'}a wag next to me,@nd sarme
o :

questionﬂ’lew(so he answered Ho, both are Gentilea, He answered that

3o
questiom@o ahead, On the way to the railroad statior_x/ the depot that mile.

we heard noises from there,drunken noises and yells and shouting and crying,
-

'

Vo[e were stopped a number of fimes and everybodj,r)the same questionJA‘Jew
because I wore civilian clothes and he answered)l realized that I had to keep

gniet, He did the angwering, Finally we reached ihe station, '.\N/e walked into

H
s

the room of the I see people, sitting,2nd a aumber of Jews standing among
on .
themlmy uncie,I turned,ﬁg held swt to me;git down;glt hereaand again I ant

down.gnd again pecple around us were peasants, soldiers, gentiles, A group
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of gentiles and there are the Jews. So when I just made a motion to my

he. i

u ncle #o reu}gnizc{{meﬂhe probably wanted to say something and 1 saw how
thay & him right ithere and then.;go I realized I ara in daager and [ have

no choiceist) he began to talk to we aloud and addressing mei'n Russgian,
you address by name and father's name addressing me with)absolutely no

& Siepan dvanovich
doubt, Russian néme my father is Ivqn and I'm Shepon Evenovich., I
realized he was dmng it on purpose and I answered hli"“l,&'ld he thought we
WmemMMgméamew&J@mW sl
w—a&d&aﬁei—tcwv because we could hear shoo»mg&mzﬁld we giayed
sondil A ot becaue I Hecams

that way all night long until the rest of the niglltﬁm a little light
and I said I will go now. He saidj all right I will take you to the outside to

O /
the door. Promise me you won't travel anymora.ﬂ is not the time to travel.

P ,
. He gaid? /0 ?rwz

A, te aaid}to me;?_’ should promise, AllL wani}‘,I said is to see my father

and my mother and that's all [ need, 1 wouldn't travel,l have 11dd&0uﬁh /’5’
7 Ky

alreadyg&'nd he said good~#bye)we shool hands [ thanked hn’r\ﬂ anﬂ’ﬁﬁs‘krng

hiswe® not knowing who he is or what he is ,and in frout )outside the station
hous e)in front there is a big place place?about five blocksopen it's
for taxis to drive in and 30 onbﬁnd I joined a group of peasaants and I went

with them across this big open apace.

0 Lik P/ﬁ,-»/?daé’
. ike a p&a.cha,ée no

| st Do Takl.
A, I was in a dark coat and they wore the regular peasant coatsdﬂzesa

sheep sking and as we‘{;;ere walking I heard a shot &nd the group spread it

was-they were shooting towards nie becauase &hey saw a black coat walking
2

that's a civillan. In the city we could hear borbs and all kinds of yells,
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Jinally I reached home, 1 ca-n:;e into the house and mother saidJ-Hide in the
hay becauee we already had three groups that came looking for rmoney and
trying to kill, 'I'hey’;/see a young man)they'il kitl you,go I hid in the hayloft
in the ha*y,ﬁ‘nd sure enocugh they came but they didn’t try to look in tlhe hay,
T hey looked around and nobody and they took wha.teverﬂcould and in the
;-r;orning}a littlie later when they Left}}‘. went down and § saiddf.ej:'s '. get out,
Cuuldn't travel)but let's pet oui:,yaue_couldn't and that's when the peasants
came and chased away the bandits“that's how we were saved. The peasanis
came and chased, it was a group of bandits who took advantage-they killed a
A

number of Jews in town and they controlled the town for a'bout!tﬁ.o days prior

to my coming in. That's when the peasants came and chased them away,

Q. Now what year was that do you remember, was it after the Revolution?
A, That was after the-yesir-The fir;t year of the Revolution,
|
a. About 1918 then, )
A, Approximately and that was that. \
{2 - And you never found out the man's nane, : "'1_.“
Al No but I told mother about it)a.nd she eaidjgmuat have 'bee__:n an angel «
gecausa to go out of his way to protect me and that meant danger ft;:r him

toogﬁecause there were no questions asked, ihey would kiil people without

VL?MMM% Ll e W :

{3, Do you think the rman was a Jew ?

asking any questions.

A, i have no idea, I have no idea. He told me he ig a follower oF '

Tolstoy. We had to talk about somethingﬂso we arve talking things of cultural. - -
f ¥

!

it turned out to be a cultural man}quite inteiligent ,said he was & follow%_r
. 3 :

i
of Tolstoi. ‘ 4
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Q.._;I So he could have been sither Febstwy or a Jew T
A Yeah., I hada lot of experiances,
Gomel - ?
{2 Now when did you leave Gorepnsl and H-cm-r‘-{e}w 4
(BND OF SIDE ONE)
A, . @ went to visit her and I came and [ couldn't go ba.ck,.gtayed there
ﬁ; yeard,
3., - Where was she living
&,  Ina srall town I told you.
&N I know, where in white Russia also?
L , Cromells
A, White Russia not far from Gewsrenel just about an hour by train,and

then an h@;f‘_:-r_ by horse and wagcn,ﬂmi I stayed there a whole year,

£, You couldn't get out?

A 'f'her@ was 1o place to ge. Couldn'i get<the Potaeks were fighiing
. . So )
the Rissiang,the Russians were fightiayg the Polack.a,«we decided (o get vui

and we developed a fear, feeling knowledge of God in the morniug you would

he__ ﬁ
look at the houses and have B feeling )the housnes are s :[gey aire cryings
see.

/gouble is brewing., Come out and eaya)the houses look bright,%thing will

happen foday. We could see that we are exposed in a small town to almest
Purac% )
any kind ofﬂva:ndalism.mé_o in the meaniime,a niece of my wife her husband

e dedo -
went to America and sarne® a few dollars and bring over his wife and child,
She Lived_ also with a niece of hers-and he made -m.oﬁey and he sent a dalegate
from there to pick up 2 few people.also his wife. e couldn't reach us,,ﬂe

-/ - 4 bt T,
_ 59 e . ?/t -
wag already in a distant town away from us, ,We got married and hived that

P olish soldlier and he took us in a wagon and tock us all the way to that little

station town)that wa could board the train.
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{1, Where was the station town ?
A, That wasCapaterish( ?) you wouldn't find it
Q. I know but where was it, was it north of you or .
A, North,
Minslic

3. Was it towards Mianskesin?

Volhyn
A Between Weline and Foland. 5o on the way, he was stopped a few

times ancl the ns X1 QF was)l am takiag przsoners. Beﬁmfﬂxzmbw) Zﬁé;{

). You were lucky he didn't turn you in, Qe could have turned coat,
He could have changed his »iind, rzg,ht:
Yk ras Life Vv Feurtelo
A, He could have,and we came to that little town there was one iitHme
house we knocked at the doorjt was sarly in the morning and the owner
came out)ﬁease get awayfr-m Polish major is sleeping now,amd God forbid.,
Q’nd all around us soldlers, the {ront was getting closer and closer, Polish
soldiers. Well there was no place.\ké couldn't stay there because i{ you
stayed in the open you were open for every soldier io do what he wants.
A freight train came., We got into a car of the dreight train; my wife, [,
. theo

a niece and daughter and two other women of that t‘own)who also = delepate
brought roney from their husbands to take them. We got in there.
During the yearqI spent with the'm} in the small town) the Poles,they controlled

f Bolshav ks we o _
the town at that time,fthe P-dieh—md the other side. There was a major, a
Puolish major. There was a Jewish doctor and they uged to come to the
doctor's house, a single man, not married}and play cards to enteriain the
P olish major,ﬂ‘nd I dun't know what happened but this major told the..

2ekolpv.

someone in the office [ don't know who it was, or somebody that

it wasg I that helped to put a bormb under a railruad bridge so that the Polish

train covning to the bordex} and accused we of being 2 leader of a comunist
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group. He told it not to me not io my face/but he told it to saome of the
others as I said upper echelon and as we traveled, just about one or two
stations)s omebody came over fo the car-train and told us to get out and
you're so and so, yes,and you are under arresbgnd he told me whatl am
arrested for,ﬁnd he is takirig us)all of us/to the nearest i%town—
mme larg& to*ar’q,lﬂnd we heard about m that over there
there was a police station of the military police that no one ever come out
alive from there., We had a friend who was a living comunist who wrote

us letters.ﬂ‘e was in Moscow r%*g we began to ;e'rtd the letiers while traveling
by night and throwing them out on thé road so they wouldn't find it with us.
He brought us to a stable and put us in the hayloft.jhere were also two other
peasants whose guilt was they had been driving the Polish soldiers from the
villages all the way out)until spending dayg with themjand they wanted to give
up the whole thing,they wanted to go homecdo they were arrested and they

w ere brought here too under accusation&gnd here is not a soul nobody is

c omingr%body is saying.

Q. Now whose jurisdiction is this, this is Polish jurisdiction?
Pms K
A, . Polish jurisdiction. Now before that I was very active in Bpinchs(™)

a big town? there was a committee to help the Jewish people all around and

I was active therehsb there was a soldier whom my wife knew,who used to

Prodk,
be a neighbor of theirs. She asked him to go in &pinehs to these various

people certain names and tell them that they arrested me')so that they

!
could do something about it. On the walls of that place there was inscription—

please notify my wife _and children that on that day I was taken out to be shot *%@ R

please notifyziﬁtat on that day 1 was shot. There were dozens of theae
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T waao-
inscriptioneﬁ,geople who were there,becausew famous police station a military

cobied 4T .
police DéNdV:‘)‘Q Pd&}bi“qumk C?)%&’W 1&&4 Posteurnich is in Polish

Lynte 15 He Muntdy o U gl
a departmem:)dene%e ie-&e&iedThat wag the army,b-u—t)we realized where we

are. What do you do.? At least to notify our relatives our parents where we
are. So we stayed there all night long)and no bread, no food, no l.aVora.tory

no nothing and you hear the women and the men, a hayloft. So the children

gensed Hhe

began to know)they s-ta;%&d—%a—fear:ﬁley began to ery loud. My wife was

sitting and looking out of the small windownin the hayloft and the noises of
crying I suppose attracted a woman,go she told her,what is it please we didn't
eat bread, we need water, @ive us and we don't know where we are esrrd
$he wouldn't budge. This went on all night. In the morning the officer of

uctf tﬂfk
the military police not of that one.\‘{;;t was ourfﬁat one went to 4&&9&5 further,

closer to Poland and another one came in. The other one didn't know what
T Evew
this one did. So one of them a young fellow came over 1 said let my wife go
- !

o

and buy bread for them; Will she come back, [ said, of course, I am here.
1
pf'ﬁfncl I told her you go and gee the rabbi and tell him to notify our parents and

also buy bread, They allowed her to go and when the kids whent downstairs

ke
out in the yard they actually"q kisao} the earthj that's how they were. I began
i
to talk with this office:;,a young officer, It turns out that we were in the
v

same clasa in college in Hiper that we had the same professor so we were

colleagues. Now we can talk friendly.

Q. But he was a Russian, no he was a Pole?
A, Before the war he was just'as I was there. What were you arrested

7
for, [ saidI don't know. I didn't do 2 damn thing)we don‘t know why, Come

i nto the office.

Q. He was not a Jew was he?
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Ceg%ca@
A, No., We came into the office and he wrote out - that
they checked}and that we are perfect and devoted and dedicated to the
A A ;
interests of Poland and gave it to me, I came,l got it and let's go
g g S ; ;% % q, g

everybody he pave it to all of us let's go and as we went actually you met
soldiers and by the way we heard already that that doctor in her home town
they tied him to the tail of a horse and dragged him until he died. That's

m-'hat’ﬁ;sfdid.

Q. Who did that,the peasants ?
st he perceslar, Hhe Lamy
A, The Polea.ﬂ So we came there and again an army train, We showed

our papersy 66 right ahead because such certificates nobody could prove

AL
they were so good and we got into the train and we went on the way to
Ereéﬂ‘ Brest Flast. Frsk. Waraeu/™
and from Resk to-8pinseh and from $pinseh we drove to Wallach and

lo and behold inﬂthe station I noticed this officer who used to play cards who

caused the whole trouble, He noticed me too. He began to run around looking

for me. Luckily the train moved, 90 we went away. We came to Warsaw, Al

: i:i §§f@ b0 Ar
went to a hotel. There wea wereﬂ ig city.

Q. This was now what year were you in, 19197?

A. 1919, %%M o felmet e felis dmd He, -

Q. So for them the war was offer. So for them it was a new Poland

by that time.

A, So we came there and had to get visas to get to Apserica,

Q. That's where you wanted to go. ”

A, We met the delegate and we had the money already but to get visas
we”

you had to stand in line day and night stood there for a week,gOuldn't get it
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meak”

g’ouldn’t get a viaa,ﬁnd here we are/h.ere in bombardispg and the Russians
‘are coming closer. Warsaw was filled with these would be passengers

immigrents to America. Women carme here. All the delegates were
oty ool e ni. tltrond »5/%" L cwfe%’

there to collect the money, We felt that the first obligation we had was
that her niece,har husband sent money, We bought a fisa for her, false
} :

visa. Looked like a real one but it was false. We paid money for {{f At

least she is safe, And we decided everything cost money,\'bé decided to go

to m«Znﬁ we went and there is a long gtory about our trip there,

F inally we came to D% visas,Pclish passport but the P lish passport
Avthsne

had my occupation as aﬂdoctor. I told them I an: & student but they put

doctor down a doctor. That did us a great deal of good in Bmﬁnd that's

how we got out.

L]

D *. i D ?
2. At that time Bm was Daneieh a free city at that time.
A, It was a free city it was German and you had to go through the border
line.

Q. Bmwas German at that time ?

A, That's right.

(N It was in German territory but a free city is that it.

A, Later it was a free city. A derman city and Germany was about

ready to become-to have the revolution then.

Q. ' Their post war refolution, right, I see. ,

A, + DBecause I became acquainted with two doctors in ;pfere
e I A . o

w ere abdut 50, 000 imigrants, j:here was & prison camp and they usedthat

to keep ué}. There was no room, 80 people slept on the street there in the

/

open in the rain. It was awful, I having to sign doctore I came and took a
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chance I came to the doctor and I said that my wife is not well and another
one I would like to put them in the hospital and that waa the wprst thing
xﬁégnfg; to do, That was the rumor if you were in the hospital you are a sick
person so why should they let you come to Arr:erica,@ut we came in a clean
bath and you had your freedom. The next day I became acquainted with the
doctors and one of them said why do you go to America why don't you go
back. Rusaia is coming gocon. From the history of religion they will be

h e-re. Well a nurse comes over to me the following day, they have a patient

Yo o adkmvie e

and the doctors want 3 Well I had no cheice. 1 came

there)there wag a .ycmngster)a son of the imigmt)who was lying in bed and M/

the doctor didn't know what was wrong with him a Jewish fellow, 20 I asked
’ 2 fﬂzd
the mother what did he eat. They used to give us there a box o%some kind
e .
of jarm and bread,,&hat's all they could have. And this fellow ate a pound of
i 3 44
jam, 80 he didn't eat anything today and he didn't eat anything yesterday but
the day before ye sterday} he had a whole pound.j? was sweet and he ate it,
I aaid/ give him an enema and I walked out.
Q. My husband the doctor,
o Mo
A, I walked out as fast as I could Not g happened. Lo and behold he

,. e ool Jhue et

baecame well they gave him an enema he became well. Sorme people who were
Yl the a—,(%; Yo syl got, et el
in the holo%ust the only way they could get by and come out alive is to-do-it Wl
4
y
othe rwise that's why yvery oftenjwhen they came and I had experience with them

here’ they didn't trust anybody, It played havoc especially with the younger
ones,

. You mean the Jewe who had been through that didn't want to trust
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anybody ?
A, They wouldn't trust anybody because that is how they manged to
get out.
2. By not trusting anybody,
A, By not trusting by being alert and watchful and not telling the truth
te anbbody just keep on doing for yourskdf that's how they managed otherwise
Mdmzf’

couldn't,. ¥ou €ouldn't anyhow but this is the only thing that saved them.
Yere, a ol sf mowne

}[N ot trusting. ‘] had a pupil who came here to New York.£ouldn't make her
to trust anybody because she experienced already, wke was raped and she
wouldn't trust any men anymore,No matter what ] tried to tell her to make

She wwpeedn T . 2

her feel good and so on and the kids in the classg, and she probably is,, now.

That is the story of my coming to Amenrica.

Q. Tell me, Mr, Woll, you were a socialist but you were not a Bolshevic}(.

A, { was a Mﬁwhevicﬁ.\

Q. So that was part of your problem there,

A, That's right that was why I was condemned by the Bolshevichs., I
was a leader among the students, &V o "/M‘W'

3. Well I just want to look through here because I've been here a long

time).partly because of the fact that we did have c ompany., I'll just ask you
Bopmek.
one more question. When you were living in Gowrrel before the war,and
., Gowm
even up to the Revolution)the non-Jews in Gemmel were what, were they
R ussians., They were not FPoles and they were not Ukranians,
A, Maybe some of them they ware Poles but to us they were all Russians -

they may have been Poles and Catholics and may have been what they call

a Ru ssian@z’@woslavnic, Qmegorians.
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O I mean do you know what they were, what they considered themaselves

to be, not who governed them,

A, Russian.

Q. Did they speak Rusaian.

A, Yesa,

0. Now before the Revolution, during your early years then, did you

feel as a boy-~let'me put it another way, what was the percentage of Jews
in &‘MI compared to non-Jews. Was it a third or a half or less . .

A It was legs than half. l.ess than balf bui quite 2 community.

Q. Okay 8o it was a good sized community, close to half, Now would
you say that there waa, did you experience real anti-sem;tism before that
time?:

A The mere fact about the gymnasia. We didn't, socially we never
met with the Russians,

0. You did not.

A, Didn't have anything to do with them, Two woilds, two separate
different wor&ls W’e had a neighbor _E &a, house a gentile and we couldn't
make ﬁ%mj’é he frlendly or not? At times he would be friendly.. «

a. So who were your friends, mostly family.

WWJ}W&M Teayo- o
A, Only Jews., We had no friends with o&m%m

Q. Now your father's business for example, did he dbal with non-Jews
4

too.

A, Yes he did. He dealt with non~Jews too.

Q. Like these geese pecple that would come, Were they all Jews 7

T he people who bought up the geese and would come and eat in your house.



Harry Woll #49

A, Jews, only Jews. But you see dealing with a non-Jew it was th&d”’b

Lareks )
known you had—mmg father used to)dealing with the railroad people,

a.<aa aiil o0 My
because you had to have favors about the trai.n,‘l he used to give gifts around

tham so they were friend!ﬂ.ﬂow friendly were they I don't know. As a matter
o f fact across the street from where we lived there was a gentile woman
who used to have quite a garden and we used to buy lettuce from her and
things of this sort and we called her friendly but her son was -
sy (G Semis
. . Vo sl leg
Q. 3o it was different than reallyﬂkin the statel in a2 way, You were dealing —

correct me if I an- wrong.in the city you were dealing were you dealing with—

Wi
)
like your neighbors;~were they on a level with you in income or were they

like lower,.

A, na 1eval.1l;y were some were as intelligent as we were. Somie

of them went-but the average were lower in culture.

spteted

Q. :.Waé the difference ag great as it was in the statehel between the
o shiatel
Jew iry the stachel and the villager,
A. . Ohn yeah, that was a definite difference.
. Gomel
0./ Was that true in Gosmel, no everybody was more urban.
_ £
&, That was a different kind of breed hecause they went to grade school

."g' g
“they di__,dn't go high but they went toh gradesand then they had a newspaper they

4 read., The peasants didn't, The peasants didn't know how to read. These

/
P _
/”/ -. Q. ‘ So that already made a difference.

were in town so they knew.

p
A, - But anti-semetism was prevalent among them tog,because you see

that was -"i;he basis~that a Jew didn't produce anything. He used what somebody sae.:
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produced to sell it and make money on that and that was the baai___,r; of zionism
that we felt as long as we are not producing our own bread we wi\}l always
be depe‘ndent,uere now we have it now here in America about énéi‘gy. about
0il, You never heard so much said about becon;:ing independent}ﬁrgducing

your own energy,because otherwise-we were dapendent:go that was jthe idea.

L

of Zionism. : ' i

2. You cleared something up because [ wasg thinking to rwyeelf how :3

Poale 2100 -
could you be a member of poliicheen and a tthe same time be a comun_ié\_t
3

because that would be like a contradiction almost. . - N

P

Of course it was. That's why we couldn't and that's why tp;oy were?\j_ _
A

. ] s
g.\nmg'("() with it, \ 'ﬂ

Q. Right, I understand, Okay, 1 act going to esay thank you véry mucn],

A, You're welcome I am sure,
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